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IN UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF MISSISSIPPI

NORTHERN DIVISION
ANGELA DAVIS and others
similarly situated PLAINTIFF
V. CIVIL ACTION NO. 3:18-cv-762-HTW-LRA

CROTHALL HEALTHCARE INC.;
RODNEY GAUSE DEFENDANTS

NOTICE OF REMOVAL

TO:  Arthur S. Johnston, III, Clerk of the Court
United States District Court
Southern District of Mississippi
501 E. Court Street, Ste. 2.500
Jackson, MS 39201

Mr. Zack Wallace, Circuit Clerk

Circuit Court of Hinds County Mississippi
First Judicial District

P.O. Box 327

Jackson, MS 39205

Joel F. Dillard

Joel F. Dillard, PA

775 N. Congress Street
Jackson, MS 39202
joel@joeldillard.com

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1441, and 1446,
Defendants, Crothall Healthcare, Inc. (“Crothall”) and Rodney Gause (“Gause”) (collectively
Crothall and Gause are “Defendants”) hereby remove this action titled Angela Davis and others

similarly situated v. Crothall Healthcare, Inc.; Rodney Gause; Case No. 18-551 from the Circuit
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Court of Hinds County, Mississippi, First Judicial District to the United States District Court for
the Southern District of Mississippi, Northern Division. In support of removal, Defendants state:

BACKGROUND

1. On September 25, 2018, Plaintiff, Angela Davis (‘“Plaintiff”) filed a purported
collective action on behalf of herself and others similarly situated against Defendants. Plaintiff
filed her Complaint styled Angela Davis and Others Similarly Situated v. Crothall Healthcare,
Inc.; Rodney Gause, Cause No. 18-551, in the Circuit Court of Hinds County, Mississippi, First
Judicial District (the “Circuit Court Proceeding”).

2. A copy of Plaintiff’s Complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” pursuant to 28
U.S.C. § 1446. The entire state court record is attached hereto as Exhibit “B”” in accordance with
28 U.S.C. § 1446 and L.U.Civ.R. 5(b).

3. On October 3, 2018, Crothall was personally served with a copy of the Complaint
and a summons, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “C.”

4, On October 30, 2018, the undersigned executed Waiver of Service of Summons on
behalf of Gause, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “D.”

5. In Plaintiff’s Complaint, she brings a purported collective action under the Fair
Labor Standards Act (“FLSA”), 29 U.S.C. § 201 et seq. Exhibit A. Specifically, Plaintiff asserts
claims for unpaid overtime wages and retaliation under the FLSA. Id.

6. Defendants remove this action on the basis of federal question jurisdiction under

28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1441(a).

{JX345509.1}
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REMOVAL PURSUANT TO 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1441, AND 1446

Procedural Prerequisites

7. As further demonstrated below, this Court has jurisdiction over this matter based
on the assertion of a federal question. See 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1441(a).

8. The Notice of Removal was filed within the thirty (30) day time period for removal
under 28 U.S.C. § 1446(b).

9. The United States District Court for the Southern District of Mississippi, Northern
Division is the federal judicial district and division encompassing the Circuit Court of Hinds
County, Mississippi, First Judicial District, where this suit was originally filed.

10.  Written notice of this Notice of Removal is being given to the Plaintiff, through her
counsel, and a copy of this Notice of Removal is being filed with the Clerk of Court of the Circuit
Court of Hinds County, Mississippi, First Judicial District, as provided by 28 U.S.C. § 1446(d).

Federal Question Jurisdiction

11. This case is properly removed to this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1441
because the claims asserted by the Plaintiff in her Complaint raise substantial federal issues.

12. Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331, “[t]he district court shall have original jurisdiction
of all civil actions arising under the Constitution, laws, or treaties of the United States.”

13.  Plaintiff asserts claims for overtime wage violations and retaliation under the
FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 201 et seq. Thus, Plaintiff’s claims are based solely on the construction of

federal law, and this Court has jurisdiction over this federal question.

{I1X345509.1}
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CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE, Defendants file this Notice of Removal and removes this civil action to

the United States District Court.

YOU ARE NOTIFIED to proceed no further in the Circuit Court Proceeding unless this

action be remanded by the District Court.

DATED: November 1, 2018.

OF COUNSEL.:

Joseph L. Adams (MSB #10591)

Lindsay Thomas Dowdle (MSB #102873)
Jones Walker LLP

190 E. Capitol Street, Suite 800 (39201)
Post Office Box 427

Jackson, Mississippi 39205-0427

(601) 949-4900

(601) 949-4804 (fax)
jojoadams(@joneswalker.com
ldowdle@joneswalker.com

{JX345509.1}

CROTHALL HEALTHCARE, INC. AND
RODNEY GAUSE,

By Their Attorneys
Jones Walker LLP

/s/ Lindsay Thomas Dowdle

Lindsay Thomas Dowdle (MSB # 102873)
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Lindsay Thomas Dowdle, do hereby certify that I have this day caused to be mailed by
United States mail, postage-prepaid, a true and correct copy of the foregoing Notice of Removal
to:

Mr. Zack Wallace, Circuit Clerk

Circuit Court of Hinds County Mississippi
First Judicial District

P.O. Box 327

Jackson, MS 39205

Joel F. Dillard

Joel F. Dillard, PA

775 N. Congress Street
Jackson, MS 39202
joel@joeldillard.com

SO CERTIFIED this the 1st day of November, 2018.

/sl Lindsay Thomas Dowdle

Lindsay Thomas Dowdle

{JX345509.1}
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF HINDS COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI
FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT

Angela Davis and others similarly PLAINTIFF;
situated '

V. Caseﬂo. &g L‘ EE Il
Crothall Healthcare Inc.; DEFENDANTS.

Rodney Gause
' (JURY TRIAL DEMANDED)

COMPLAINT
This is an overtime collective action under the Fair: Labor Standards Act (I%I.SA).,.
29 U.S.é. § 201 et seq. Plaintiff Angela Davis and others like her were misclassified as
exempt “supervisors” while being assigned primarily janitorial wo;'k. In fact, they were
specifically instructed by Defendant Rodney Gause to perform any supervisory duties
they may have outside of their regular éhift hours, and to focus on janitorial work during
their shift. When any employee complained of this, Defendants either termin'ategi the
employee or constructively discharged her. In support thereof, COMES NOW THE
PLAINTIFF, by and through her attorney, and alleges as follows:
- JURISDICTION, JURY TRIAL, STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS
# 1. Thls is a “state court of competent _.iurisdi.cﬁon"': snder 29 US.C. § 216(b) arid the e
amount in controversy exceeds $200 pursuanf to.Miss. Code Ann. § 9-7-81.
2. Plaintiff hereby demands trial by jury on all issues so triable.
3. This case concerns events within the time periods specified in 29 US.C. § 255.
PARTIES

EXHIBIT L ok
. Page1of9
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4. Plaintiff Angela Davis is an adult resident of Mississippi, and a former employee
of Defendants. She worked as a janitorial/housekeeping “supervisor” in a hospital
setting, under the supervision of Defendant .Rodney Gause.

.5. Plaintiff is representative of the collective group of janitorial/housekeeping

“supervisors” working for Defendant Gause, who, on information and belief, had

i substantially identical job duties and pay policies as described herein.

f., s ' R ‘Plaintiff was an employee as defined in Section 3(e) of the FLSA. o
L I o 7 : Plamt:ffwas not exembted from miﬁimum .‘.vage. or overtime by ahy- law or o ‘
; ; regulation.

8. Defendant Crothall Healthcare Inc. (“Crothall”), is a foreign corporation

e registered to do business in the state of Mississippi. Among other things, itisa
contractor providing housekeeping services in hospitals. The registered agent for
service of process is CORPORATION SERVICE COMPANY, 7716 Old Cantén Rd,

Suite C, Madison, MS 39110.

Al AT

9. Defendant Crothall is the former employer of the Plaintiffs at issue in this

4 | lawsuit.
* | : {0 Defendant Crothall is subject to “enterprise” coverage under the FLSA. . 0
i 11. Defendaht Crothall has over $5oo,ooo per year in gross receipts. | |
| 12. Defendant Rodney Gause is an adult resident of Mississippi employed by
Defendant Crothall to manage the housekeeping staff, among other duties.

13. Defendant Gause is a “person” as defined in Section 3(a) of the FLSA. '

Page 2 of 9




Case 3:18-cv-00762-HTW-LRA Document 1-1 Filed 11/01/18 Page 3 of 9

i |

s

: L0 ML U LR R
e e - ————— T T
A R e >

N ¥ ;
S, S PSS SSRGS Y * PSS O AT S0 ICHEIE M PEDECRS SR, KRR - S Sl
i o4 i X X & . -

Case: 25CI1:18-cv-00551-JAW  Document #:2  Filed: 09/25/2018 Page 3 of 9

14. Defendant Gause was acting in the interest of Crothall in relation to Plaintiffs in
| this case.
15 Defendant Gause was an employer under :Si;(_.ﬁﬁdn 3(d) in commerce under
Section 3(s), and subjecf-to the provisions of the FLSA.
16. Defendant Gause was a manager with authority to hire and fire, supervise and

control, set payment and pay, as well as keep records, concerning the Plaintiffs.

© 17. Defendant Gause is individually liable, jointly and severally with the other named *

Hefendants, for the .'icts complained of hérein.'

FACTS

MISCLASSIFICATION

18. Plaintiff and the class of similarly sitnated employees (“Plaintiffs”) worked as
“Housekeeping Supervisors” for Defendant Crothall in some or all of 2016 and
2017.

19. Plaintiffs'were ostensibly “supervisors” or “managers” of housekeeping, but in
practice the bulk of their work was non-exempt manual labor.

20.When Defendant Rodney Gause was assigned to oversee the Plaintiffs, he insisted

‘fnore than a full shift’s workload as housekeepers themselves every assigned
shift.
21. Plaintiﬁ',s’ received disciplinary “write ups” for not meeting the numbers that were i

set.

Page 3 ofg
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.. 22. Large areas of the hospital would frequently have to be cleaned by Plaintiffs
personally.
23. Every night for many weeks, Plaintiff Davis personally cleaned the Day Surgery
Area as well as the Children's Cancer Clinic and the CVR and the Recov;ary area.
24.Each morning Plaintiff Davis pulled tubs of trash out of CVR because the 2nd

shift was always unable to get to it.

25 Plaintiff Davis also had to pull trash in areas such as the blood bank and the .

" Cardiovascular Clinic to ensure their cleanliness.

. 26.Mr. Gause could be quoted stating frequently to the supervisors, “If someone
here doesn't do their job, then you do it. This is why we pay you, to Me sure
that it is-done and if you can't do it then that's another conversation we can have
in my office, I can find someone else to get it done!"

27. This frequently meant working more than a full shift each day - with the vast
majority of that time spent doing manual housekeeping work.
28.As a result of these practices, Plaintiff and the other members of the class worked

- primarily as housekeepers, and only a small part of their work was supervisory.

i "_j";';':gg;li‘l_}gdd_iﬁdp,- t_hg:'.-d'ls_tensibly “s'upen-'_isory" duties themse_lves did not involvethe .. ... - . . ...

£ -
%4

5 exemtse of signiﬁcant. iﬁdependent discretion. Defendant Gause took it upon
himself to set most échedules, and the authorization of most papérwork did not
involve the Plaintiff in the use of any judgment, because the results were
predetermined by Crothall policy or pre-existing directive of Defendant Gause.

30. Defendants classified the Plaintiffs as “exempt” from overtime and paid a salary. -

Page4of9
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31. Plaintiffs were not, in fact, exempt from the overtime provisions of the FLSA, and
were misclassified.
- _'ﬁA;LURE TO PAY OVERTIME
32. Defendants did not track the time actually worked by the Plaintiffs, aside from
merely recording the shift to which they were assigned.
33. Plaintiffs worked long hours both on and outside their assigned shifts -
: 51gmﬁcant1y more than 40 hours in most workweeks
b 34 A “lunch” hour was assngned but rarely gwen, asit could be mterrupted at any
t:ime in order to keep business going.
35. Plaintiffs regularly worked at least four hours after their shifts.
36. Plaintiffs frequently worked 6 days a week.
37. Defendants paid Plaintiffs a fixed salary, irrespective of the hours actually worked
by the Plaintiffs in any given workweek.
38.Defendants did not pay Plaintiffs at the overtime rate for hours worked in excess
of 40 in a given workweek.
RETALIATION
39: Plaintiff and many of her coworkers complained about the FLSA violations.
40. In respt_;nse,'.Defendant 'Gaus_é began a campai@ of harassment iﬁtended to
- pressure them into quitting their job.
41. For example, in daily staff meetings, Mr. Gause said things such as “I will get new
ﬁlanagem"to feplace those that can’t do what needs to be done” - i.e., pé_rform the

‘manual housekeeping labor he was assigning them.

‘. Page 5'°.f 9.
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42.Rodney Gause bragged on how many managers hel has fired, and stated
repeatedly that Mississippi was an “at will” state - which he interpreted to mean
~ ‘that he could fire managers for making protected complaints under the FLSA.
43.Some Plaintiffs were fired or constructively discharged for making protected
- FLSA complaints.
44. For-exaﬁlple, class member Elarence Vinson called the H.R. complaint phone line

about Defendant Gause

£ 45 Mr Vinson cmnplamed that Defendant Gause was not supposed to be assngnmg St

them so much housekeeping work.
46.Mr. Vinson also complained that Defendant Gause harassed and threatened them
with termination when they complained about this issue.
~ 47.Mr. Vinson was terminated by Defendant Gause for this reason.
~ 48.Through terminations like this one, and other harassing actions, Defendant
Gause made it clear that employees that complained about his violations of the
law were not going to be working for Crothall for long.
49. Plaintiff Davis was personally harassed by Defendant Gause to the point that she
| could not reasonably continue to work for Crothall e
50 Plamtlff Da\ns was mnstructwely discharged because she. complamed of
Defendant Gause’s unlawful activity under the FLSA.
51. As a result of this she has suffered severe emotional distress.
CAUSES OF ACTION

COUNT 1: Unpaid overtime
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52. Plaintiffs incorporates all allegations set forth in all other sections of this
complaint.

53. Plaintiffs are employees and fom"lér. employees protecte_'d'_by"the overtime
provisions of the FLSA.

54.Under 29 U.S.C. § 207, overtime of one and one-half times the regular rate must
be paid for hours worked in excess of 40 in a given work week.

55 Defendants faﬂed to pay overtime as’ reqmred by the F LSA.
¥ 56 Defendants requlred Plamtlffs to work overtlme without any'compensatxon ; g

57. Defendants' violations were willful.

58. Plaintiffs seek the full remedies provided by 29 U.S.C. § 216, including damages
in the amount of their unpaid wages, liquidated damages, interest as applicable,
and such other legal and equi.table relief as may be proper.

59. Plaintiffs seek recovery of attorney's fees and costs under 29 U.S.C. § 216 and
other applicable provisions of law énd equity.

-CO[fNT 2: FLSA Retaliation
60.Plaintiffs incorporates all allegations set forth in all other sections of this
i complzunt. | .

61. As descnbed above, Plaintiffs complamed of actlons ‘which they beheved in good.

faith were violation of the FLSA — and which were in fact violations of the FLSA.
62.These complaints are protected activity under Section 15(a)(3) of the FLSA
63. Defendants retaliated by firing some Plaintiffs, mﬁs&ucti_velydi%har‘piﬁg_otherﬁ, .

and harassing all those that complained of FLSA violations.
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64. Defendants' violation was willful.
65. Plaintiffs seek the full remedies provided by 29 U.S.C. § 216, including damages
Ain the amount of their unpaid wages, compensatory damages, punitive damages .
(and/c;r liquidated Idamages), interest as applicable, and such other legal and
equitable relief as may be proper.
66. Plaintiffs seek recovery of attorney's fees and costs under 29 U.S.C. § 216 and
i other appllcable prows:ons of law and eqmty
PRAYER FOR RELIEF
67. WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs request that this Court award Plaintiffs all available
equitable and legal relief, including the following:
a. Declare that the conduct complained of is unlawful and enter an
injunction;
b. Require Defendants to post a notice in the workplace that the policies and
procedures at issue were found unlawful by this Court;
¢. Require Defendants, jointly and severally, to pay Plaintiffs wages owed
under Sections 7 of the FLSA, and an equal amount in liquidated damages;
de Reqmre Defendants , jointly and severally, to pay Plaintiffs back pay and
front pay/ remstatement as well as liquidated, compensatory, and pumtlve;
damages;
e. Award Plaintiffs reasonable attorney’s fees and costs of thls achon
Award Plamhffs interest on damages at the legal rate as appropnate, |

including pre- and post-judgment interest; and

/Page8ofg
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g. Grant any further relief that the Court deems just and proper.

2 - The foregoing Complaint is respectfully submitted on behalf of Plaintiffs by and thmugh

e o s b gy vy B g O e

counsel:

09‘4 %.-/ - Date: 6[‘ /"l - 208

Foel F. Dillard, Esq. (MS Bar 104202)
Joel F. Dillard, PA

775 N. Congress St.

Jackson MS 39202

Ph: 601-487-7369

Email: joel@joeldillard.com
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IN THE _l‘:[L\C(JD_ COURT OF THE tL_WS‘}_”_ JUDICIAL DISTRICT

OF HINDS, COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI
Qfg'_e la Qﬂlilj,ftCU o PLAINTIFF

vo. 18--55]
Hﬂal Healthoare Ine. DEFENDANT
nej aAUX

I, ZACK WALLACE, CIRCUIT CLERK, OF THE CIRCUIT COURT
IN AND FOR THE SAID STATE AND COUNTY DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT
THE ATTACHED ARE TRUE AND CORRECT COPIES OF ALL THE PAPERS
FILED IN THIS OFFICE- IN THE ABOVE STYLED AND NUMBERED CAUSE,

AS OF THIS DATE THE SAME IS OF RECORD IN THIS OFFICE IN DOCKET

BOOK NO. _Zé)]__ PAGE NO. __ZZS_L TO WIT:

'GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE THIS THE _[_

DAY OF mk)mf/, é{:}ﬁi‘}
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Sl T, ZACK WALLACE, CIRCUIT CLERK
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF HINDS COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI
FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT

Zack Wallace
Circuit Clerk

407 E. Pascagoula Street,
Jackson, MS 39201
601-968-6628

Receipt No. 57370 Date: 9/25/2018

Received From: JOEL F DILLARD PA
Transaction Type: Civil Case Filing Fee

Payment: Check - 1157
Clerk: Dawn Lyons
Comments:
Case No. Case title Amount Paid
ANGELA DAVIS
AND OTHERS
SIMILARLY
25CI1:18-cv-00551-JAW SITUATED v. Total Fee: $161.00
CROTHALL
HEALTHCARE INC et
al
Clerk: $85.00
Judicial: $40.00
Elec. Court: $10.00
Legal Asst: $5.00

Educ and Train:  $2.00
Court Constit: $0.50
Court Reporter:  $10.00

Court Adm: $2.00
Law Library: $2.50
Archive: $1.00

Jury Tax: $3.00
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF HINDS COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI
FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT

Angela Davis and others similarly PLAINTIFF;
situated

V. Case No. !8 zji I,
Crothall Healthcare Inc.; DEFENDANTS.

Rodney Gause
(JURY TRIAL DEMANDED)

COMPLAINT

This is an overtime collective action under the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA),
29 U.S.C. § 201 et seq. Plaintiff Angela Davis and others like her were misclassified as
exempt “supervisors” while being assigned primarily janitorial work. In fact, they were
specifically instructed by Defendant Rodney Gause to perform any supervisory duties
they may have outside of their regular shift hours, and to focus on janitorial work during
their shift. When any employee complained of this, Defendants either terminated the
employee or constructively discharged her. In support thereof, COMES NOW THE
PLAINTIFF, by and through her attorney, and alleges as follows:
JURISDICTION, JURY TRIAL, STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS
1. This is a “state court of competent jurisdiction” under 29 U.S.C. § 216(b) and the
amount in controversy exceeds $200 pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. § 9-7-81.
2. Plaintiff hereby demands trial by jury on all issues so triable.
3. This case concerns events within the time periods specified in 29 U.S.C. § 255.

PARTIES

Page 10f9
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Case:

4.

10.

11.

12.

13.

25CI11:18-cv-00551-JAW  Document#: 2  Filed: 09/25/2018 Page 2 of 9

Plaintiff Angela Davis is an adult resident of Mississippi, and a former employee
of Defendants. She worked as a janitorial/housekeeping “supervisor” in a hospital
setting, under the supervision of Defendant Rodney Gause.

Plaintiff is representative of the collective group of janitorial/housekeeping
“supervisors” working for Defendant Gause, who, on information and belief, had
substantially identical job duties and pay policies as described herein.

Plaintiff was an employee as defined in Section 3(e) of the FLSA.

Plaintiff was not exempted ﬁom minimum wagé or overtime by any law or
regulation.

Defendant Crothall Healthcare Inc. (“Crothall”), is a foreign corporation
registered to do business in the state of Mississippi. Among other things, it is a
contractor providing housekeeping services in hospitals. The registered agent for
service of process is CORPORATION SERVICE COMPANY, 7716 Old Canton Rd,
Suite C, Madison, MS 39110.

Defendant Crothall is the former employer of the Plaintiffs at issue in this
lawsuit.

Defendant Crothall is subject to “enterprise” coverage under the FLSA.
Defendant Crothall has over $500,000 per year in gross receipts.

Defendant Rodney Gause is an adult resident of Mississippi employed by
Defendant Crothall to manage the housekeeping staff, among other duties.

Defendant Gause is a “person” as defined in Section 3(a) of the FLSA.

Page 2 of 9
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14. Defendant Gause was acting in the interest of Crothall in relation to Plaintiffs in
this case.

15. Defendant Gause was an employer under Section 3(d) in commerce under
Section 3(s), and subject to the provisions of the FLSA.

16. Defendant Gause was a manager with authority to hire and fire, supervise and
control, set payment and pay, as well as keep records, concerning the Plaintiffs.

17. Defendant Gause is individually liable, jointly and severally with the other named
defendants, for the écts complained of hérein. | |

FACTS
MISCLASSIFICATION

18. Plaintiff and the class of similarly situated employees (“Plaintiffs”) worked as
“Housekeeping Supervisors” for Defendant Crothall in some or all of 2016 and
2017.

19. Plaintiffs were ostensibly “supervisors” or “managers” of housekeeping, but in
practice the bulk of their work was non-exempt manual labor.

20.When Defendant Rodney Gause was assigned to oversee the Plaintiffs, he insisted
that, because there were not enough housekeepers, the supervisors must work
more than a full shift’s workload as housekeepers themselves every assigned
shift.

21. Plaintiffs received disciplinary “write ups” for not meeting the numbers that were

set.

Page 3 0of 9
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22. Large areas of the hospital would frequently have to be cleaned by Plaintiffs
personally.

23. Every night for many weeks, Plaintiff Davis personally cleaned the Day Surgery
Area as well as the Children's Cancer Clinic and the CVR and the Recovery area.

24. Each morning Plaintiff Davis pulled tubs of trash out of CVR because the 2nd
shift was always unable to get to it.

25. Plaintiff Davis also had to pull trash in areas such as the blood bank and the
Cardiovascular Clinic to ensure their cleanliness. |

26.Mr. Gause could be quoted stating frequently to the supervisors, “If someone
here doesn't do their job, then you do it. This is why we pay you, to make sure
that it is done and if you can't do it then that's another conversation we can have
in my office, I can find someone else to get it done!"

27. This frequently meant working more than a full shift each day - with the vast
majority of that time spent doing manual housekeeping work.

28.As aresult of these practices, Plaintiff and the other members of the class worked
primarily as housekeepers, and only a small part of their work was supervisory.

29.In addition, the ostensibly “supervisory” duties themselves did not involve the
exercise of significant independent discretion. Defendant Gause took it upon
himself to set most schedules, and the authorization of most paperwork did not
involve the Plaintiff in the use of any judgment, because the results were
predetermined by Crothall policy or pre-existing directive of Defendant Gause.

30.Defendants classified the Plaintiffs as “exempt” from overtime and paid a salary.

Page 4 of 9
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31. Plaintiffs were not, in fact, exempt from the overtime provisions of the FLSA, and

were misclassified.
FAILURE TO PAY OVERTIME

32. Defendants did not track the time actually worked by the Plaintiffs, aside from
merely recording the shift to which they were assigned.

33. Plaintiffs worked long hours both on and outside their assigned shifts -
significantly more than 40 hours in most workweeks.

34.A ‘“lunch” hour was aséigned, but rarely gi\lren, as it could be in.terrupted at any
time in order to keep business going.

35. Plaintiffs regularly worked at least four hours after their shifts.

36. Plaintiffs frequently worked 6 days a week.

37. Defendants paid Plaintiffs a fixed salary, irrespective of the hours actually worked
by the Plaintiffs in any given workweek.

38. Defendants did not pay Plaintiffs at the overtime rate for hours worked in excess
of 40 in a given workweek.

RETALIATION

39. Plaintiff and many of her coworkers complained about the FLSA violations.

40.In response, Defendant Gause began a campaign of harassment intended to
pressure them into quitting their job.

41. For example, in daily staff meetings, Mr. Gause said things such as “I will get new
managers to replace those that can’t do what needs to be done” - i.e., perform the

manual housekeeping labor he was assigning them.

Page 5 0f 9
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42.Rodney Gause bragged on how many managers he has fired, and stated
repeatedly that Mississippi was an “at will” state - which he interpreted to mean
that he could fire managers for making protected complaints under the FLSA.

43.Some Plaintiffs were fired or constructively discharged for making protected
FLSA complaints.

44.For example, class member Elarence Vinson called the H.R. complaint phone line
about Defendant Gause.

45. Mr. Vinson compléined that Defendant Gause was not supﬁosed to be assigning
them so much housekeeping work.

46.Mr. Vinson also complained that Defendant Gause harassed and threatened them
with termination when they complained about this issue.

47.Mr. Vinson was terminated by Defendant Gause for this reason.

48.Through terminations like this one, and other harassing actions, Defendant
Gause made it clear that employees that complained about his violations of the
law were not going to be working for Crothall for long.

49. Plaintiff Davis was personally harassed by Defendant Gause to the point that she
could not reasonably continue to work for Crothall.

50. Plaintiff Davis was constructively discharged because she complained of
Defendant Gause’s unlawful activity under the FLSA.

51. As a result of this she has suffered severe emotional distress.

CAUSES OF ACTION

COUNT 1: Unpaid overtime

Page 6 of 9
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52. Plaintiffs incorporates all allegations set forth in all other sections of this
complaint.

53. Plaintiffs are employees and former employees protected by the overtime
provisions of the FLSA.

54.Under 29 U.S.C. § 207, overtime of one and one-half times the regular rate must
be paid for hours worked in excess of 40 in a given work week.

55. Defendants failed to pay overtime as required by the FLSA.

56. Defendants required Plaintiffs to work overtime without any combensation.

57. Defendants’ violations were willful.

58. Plaintiffs seek the full remedies provided by 29 U.S.C. § 216, including damages
in the amount of their unpaid wages, liquidated damages, interest as applicable,
and such other legal and equitable relief as may be proper.

59. Plaintiffs seek recovery of attorney's fees and costs under 29 U.S.C. § 216 and
other applicable provisions of law and equity.

COUNT 2: FLSA Retaliation

60.Plaintiffs incorporates all allegations set forth in all other sections of this
complaint.

61. As described above, Plaintiffs complained of actions which they believed in good
faith were violation of the FLSA — and which were in fact violations of the FLSA.

62.These complaints are protected activity under Section 15(a)(3) of the FLSA.

63. Defendants retaliated by firing some Plaintiffs, constructively discharging others,

and harassing all those that complained of FLSA violations.
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64. Defendants' violation was willful.

65. Plaintiffs seek the full remedies provided by 29 U.S.C. § 216, including damages
in the amount of their unpaid wages, compensatory damages, punitive damages
(and/or liquidated damages), interest as applicable, and such other legal and
equitable relief as may be proper.

66. Plaintiffs seek recovery of attorney's fees and costs under 29 U.S.C. § 216 and
other applicable provisions of law and equity.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

67. WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs request that this Court award Plaintiffs all available
equitable and legal relief, including the following:

a. Declare that the conduct complained of is unlawful and enter an
injunction;

b. Require Defendants to post a notice in the workplace that the policies and
procedures at issue were found unlawful by this Court;

¢. Require Defendants, jointly and severally, to pay Plaintiffs wages owed
under Sections 7 of the FLSA, and an equal amount in liquidated damages;

d. Require Defendants, jointly and severally, to pay Plaintiffs back pay and
front pay/reinstatement, as well as liquidated, compensatory, and punitive
damages;

e. Award Plaintiffs reasonable attorney's fees and costs of this action;

f. Award Plaintiffs interest on damages at the legal rate as appropriate,

including pre- and post-judgment interest; and
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g. Grant any further relief that the Court deems just and proper.

The foregoing Com.plaint is respectfully submitted on behalf of Plaintiffs by and through
counsel:

R
“Joel F. Dillard, Esq. (MS Bar 104202)
Joel F. Dillard, PA
775 N. Congress St.
Jackson MS 39202
Ph: 601-487-7369
Email: joel@joeldillard.com

-
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF HINDS COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI
FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT

Angela Davis and others PLAINTIFF;
similarly situated

. Case No. B_{—Jﬁ,

Crothall Healthcare Inc.; DEFENDANTS.
Rodney Gause

SUMMONS
THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

TO: Crothall Healthcare Inc.

c/o CORPORATION SERVICE COMPANY,

7716 Old Canton Rd, Suite C,
Madison, MS 39110.

NOTICE TO DEFENDANT

THE COMPLAINT WHICH IS ATTACHED TO THIS SUMMONS IS IMPORTANT AND
YOU MUST TAKE IMMEDIATE ACTION TO PROTECT YOUR RIGHTS.

You are required to mail or hand deliver a copy of a written response to the Complaint to
Joel F. Dillard, Esq., the attorney for the Plaintiff, whose address is 775 N. Congress St.,
Jackson, MS 39202. Your response must be mailed or delivered within (30) days from
the date of delivery of this summons and complaint or a judgment by default will be
entered against you for the money or other things demanded in the complaint.

You must also file the original of your response with the Clerk of this Court within a
reasonable time afterward.

Issued under my hand and the seal of said Court, this date Q\&’i\\’é?

ZACK WALLACE, CIRCUIT Cl

cteek (o0
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PROOF OF SERVICE--SUMMONS

Name of Person or Entity Served:

I, the undersigned process server, served the summons and complaint upon the person
or entity named above in the manner set forth below:

PERSONAL SERVICE. I personally delivered copies to on (date)
, where I found said person(s) in County of the State

of

At the time of service I was at least 18 years of age and not a party to this action.
Fee for service: $

Process server must list below: [Please print or type]
Name

Social Security No.
Address
Telephone No.

Notary
State of
County of
Personally appeared before me the undersigned authority in and for the state and
county aforesaid, the within named who being first by me duly sworn states on oath
that the matters and facts set forth in the foregoing “Proof of Service-Summons” are true
and correct as therein stated.

Process Server (Signature)
Sworn to and subscribed before me this date:

Notary Public
(Seal) My Commission Expires:
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF HINDS COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI
FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT

Angela Davis and others PLAINTIFF;
similarly situated

W Case No. Rﬁfﬁ,

Crothall Healthcare Inc.; DEFENDANTS.
Rodney Gause

SUMMONS

THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

TO: Crothall Healthcare Inc.

c/o CORPORATION SERVICE COMPANY,
7716 Old Canton Rd, Suite C,

Madison, MS 39110.

NOTICE TO DEFENDANT

THE COMPLAINT WHICH IS ATTACHED TO THIS SUMMONS IS IMPORTANT AND
YOU MUST TAKE IMMEDIATE ACTION TO PROTECT YOUR RIGHTS.

You are required to mail or hand deliver a copy of a written response to the Complaint to
Joel F. Dillard, Esq., the attorney for the Plaintiff, whose address is 775 N. Congress St.,
Jackson, MS 39202. Your response must be mailed or delivered within (30) days from
the date of delivery of this summons and complaint or a judgment by default will be
entered against you for the money or other things demanded in the complaint.

You must also file the original of your response with the Clerk of this Court within a
reasonable time afterward.

Issued under my hand and the seal of said Court, this date q\ Q’j\\g

ZACK WALLACE, CIRCUIT C
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PROOF OF SERVICE--SUMMONS

Name of Person or Entity Served: (_ ()} (/)7 0N _Ser ]ZZ‘Ccf { ¢)I’ﬂﬂ/ 1 y

I, the undersigned process server, served the summons and complaint upon the person
or entity named above in the manner set forth below: _

Christinc Sheppard
PERSONAL SERVICE. I personally delivered copies to on (date)
[0]3] 15 , where I found said person(s) in (NI SO County of the State
of LNI1S S0 S0t

At the fime of service I was at least 18 years of age and not a party to this action. .
Fee for service: $

Process seryer must list below: [Please print or type]
Name_L€ ’? ¢yd -\)Gj"l NSON

Social Security’No.

Address ) AH

Telephone No.

State of ﬂ ﬂ’gg'{/sgl ri
County of _[f |1
Personally appeared before me the undersigned authority in and for the state and
county aforesaid, the within named who being first by me duly sworn states on oath
that the matters and facts set forth in the foregoing “Proof of Service-Summons” are true
and correct as thereingstated.

\\._ 3

CCoirt

Notary

§ 5 / ; / .
Sworn to and subscribed before me this date: ~ % é{ / /Z

M:ﬁ;{t@ Rotts 3/“ / 'f

Notary Public it
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(Seal) My Commission Egm&&:u:fﬁqu.
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF HINDS COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI
FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT

Angela Davis and others PLAINTIFF;
similarly situated

V. Case No. R‘"f/ﬁ,
Crothall Healthcare Inc.; DEFENDANTS.

Rodney Gause

SUMMONS

THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

TO: Crothall Healthcare Inc.

¢/o CORPORATION SERVICE COMPANY,
7716 Old Canton Rd, Suite C,

Madison, MS 39110.

NOTICE TO DEFENDANT

THE COMPLAINT WHICH IS ATTACHED TO THIS SUMMONS IS IMPORTANT AND
YOU MUST TAKE IMMEDIATE ACTION TO PROTECT YOUR RIGHTS.

You are required to mail or hand deliver a copy of a written response to the Complaint to
Joel F. Dillard, Esq., the attorney for the Plaintiff, whose address is 775 N. Congress St.,
Jackson, MS 39202. Your response must be mailed or delivered within (30) days from
the date of delivery of this summons and complaint or a judgment by default will be
entered against you for the money or other things demanded in the complaint.

You must also file the original of your response with the Clerk of this Court within a
reasonable time afterward.

Issued under my hand and the seal of said Court, this date 9 k&fi LSB -

ZACK WALLACE, CIRCUIT g’
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PROOF OF SERVICE-SUMMONS

Name of Person or Entity Served: ( (0{{1 /4 'Z( N _Sei Vi ‘CQ ( (. )fﬂﬂf / y

I, the undersigned process server, served the summons and complaint upon the person
or entity named above in the manner set forth below:
christina Sheppard
PERSONAL SERVICE. I personally delivered copies to ! on (date)
where I found said person(s) in | SO County of the State

of €S
At the time of service I was at least 18 years of age and not a party to this action. .

Fee for service: $

Process sejlzrer must list below: [Please print or type]
Name J0 N

Social SecuriﬁNo.

Address 585% g, S:f% %z,f L court
Telephone No. ~{)3

_ Notary
State of 'g{ﬂ,ﬁgl P rL
County of N3
Personally appeared before me the undersigned authority in and for the state and
county aforesaid, the within named who being first by me duly sworn states on oath
that the matters and facts set forth in the foregoing “Proof of Service-Summons” are true

Prijress ] rve' (Slgn / ]
Sworn to and subscnbed before me this date: Z' J 5‘ / ?

[}wfﬁﬂ Kotts -3/&2’ / (¢

Notary Public o,
(Seal) My Commission W&%}' ?_"""" ',
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AQ 399 (01/09) Waiver of the Service of Summons

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the
Southern District of Mississippi

= _Angela Davisetal. )
Plaintiff )

V. ) Civil Action No.
- Crothall Healthcare Inc et al. )
Defendant )

WAIVER OF THE SERVICE OF SUMMONS

TO: JDBI Dillard _— - e e e ——
(Name of the plaintiff”'s attorney or unrepresented plaintiff)

I have received your request to waive service of a summons in this action along with a copy of the complaint,
two copies of this waiver form, and a prepaid means of returning one signed copy of the form to you.

I, or the entity 1 represent, agree to save the expense of serving a summons and complaint in this case.

I understand that I, or the entity I represent, will keep all defenses or objections to the lawsuit, the court’s
jurisdiction, and the venue of the action, but that I waive any objections to the absence of a summons or of service.

I also understand that 1, or the entity I represent, must file and serve an answer or a motion under Rule 12 within
60 days from ~10/29/2018 , the date when this request was sent (or 90 days if it was sent outside the
United States). If1 fail to do so, a default judgment will be entered agaiiist me of the cptity I reppésent.
- 4 %

r{j \ -~ ik ///
Date: | © )6 0 ‘ \'b ‘If P S o
L -Signature of the atfyrney or unrepresented party
__Rodney Gause . : _ Lindsgy Dowdle .
Printed name of party waiving service of summons Printed name

190 E Capitol St, Suite 800
~ Jackson, MS 39201

Address
ldowdle@)joneswalker.com

E-mail address

(601) 949-4944

Telephone number

Duty to Avoid Unnecessary Expenses of Serving a Summons
Rule 4 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure requires certain defendants to cooperate in saving unnecessary expenses of serving a summons
and complaint. A defendant who is located in the United States and who fails to return a signed waiver of service requested by a plaintiff located in
the United States will be required to pay the expenscs of service, unless the defendant shows good cause for the failure.

“Good cause” does not include a belief that the lawsuit is groundless, or that it has been brought in an improper venue, or that the court has
no jurisdiction over this matter or over the defendant or the defendant’s property.

If the waiver is signed and returned, you can still make these and all other defenses and objections, but you cannot object to the absence of
a summons or of service.

If you waive service, then you must, within the time specified on the waiver form, serve an answer or a motion under Rule 12 on the plaintiff
and file a copy with the court, By signing and returning the waiver form, you arc allowed more time to respond than if a summons had been served.

EXHIBIT

i_D
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